
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Venue: Virtual Hearing Date: Friday, 10 July 2020
Time: 9.30 a.m.

A G E N D A

1. To determine whether the following items should be considered under the 
categories suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended 
March 2006) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

2. To determine any item(s) which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 
considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency. 

3. Application (made in accordance with s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the 
Grant of a Premises Licence for the premises described as a container unit in 
the car park of Pit Stop Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham 
(documentation herewith) (Pages 1 - 52)

 



Hearing Procedure 

1 The Chair of the Licensing Committee will introduce the Committee and 
ask officers to introduce themselves.

2 The Chair will ask the applicants to formally introduce themselves.

3 The Licensing Officer will outline the procedure to be followed at the 
hearing.

4 Hearing Procedure:-

i. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report.

ii. Questions concerning the report can be asked both by Members and the 
applicant.

iii. The Licensing Officer will introduce in turn representatives for the 
Responsible Authority and Interested Parties who will be asked to detail their 
relevant representations.

iv. Members may ask questions of those parties

v. With the leave of the Chair the applicant or his representative may cross 
examine the representatives of the Responsible Authorities and Interested 
Parties.

vi. The applicant / licensee (or his/her nominated representative) will then be 
asked to:-

a) detail the application;
b) provide clarification on the application and respond to the 

representations made.

vii. The applicant / licensee (or his/her nominated representative) may then be 
asked questions by members and with the leave of the Chair from the other 
parties present.

viii. The applicant will then be given the opportunity to sum up the application. 
The Licensing Officer will then detail the options.

ix. There will then be a private session for members to take legal advice and 
consider the application.

5 The decision of the Licensing Committee will be given in accordance with 
the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made there 
under.

Notes:

 At any time in the Licensing Process Members of the Committee may request 
legal advice from the Solicitor to the Committee. This advice may be given in 
open session or in private.

 The Committee Hearing will be held in public unless and in accordance with 
the Regulations the Committee determine that the public should be 
excluded.

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



Page 1 of 11

Public Report
Licensing Sub-Committee

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting

Licensing Sub-Committee – 10th July 2020 (9:30 am)

Report Title

Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.17 of the Licensing Act 
2003) for the Grant of a Premises Licence for the premises described as a container 
unit in the carpark of Pitstop Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham, 
S65 1PS.

Report Author(s)

Alan Pogorzelec, Licensing Manager, Community Safety and Street Scene
01709 254955 

Report Summary

On the 12th May 2020, an application was made on behalf of Matki Chai Ltd for a 
Premises Licence at the premises described as a container unit in the carpark of 
Pitstop Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham, S65 1PS.  The 
premises is located within the car park of an existing hand car wash and the 
applicant is seeking a licence to permit the provision of late night refreshment from 
the container unit on Friday and Saturday night.  

Following the submission of the application paperwork, concerns were raised by 
Rotherham MBC Children and Young People’s Services, South Yorkshire Police and 
Rotherham MBC Licensing Service (in the role as a responsible authority).  
Representations have been received from each of these agencies who all cite 
concerns regarding the nature of the premises and the likely impact of its activities 
on the local area.  In addition, a representation has been received by a local 
Councillor – again citing concerns regarding the impact of the premises on the local 
area.  Further detail on these is provided within the main body of the report.
   

Page 2



Page 2 of 11

Recommendations

1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee considers the information contained within 
this report (and associated appendices) along with any additional information 
presented at the hearing and subsequently determines the application that 
has been made.

2. The Licensing Sub-Committee should inform the Licensing Manager of the 
decision in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Regulations made thereunder. 

List of Appendices Included

Appendix 1 Location details 
Appendix 2 Application form received on 12th May 2020
Appendix 3 Plan of premises (provided by applicant)
Appendix 4 Representations received (redacted where appropriate)

Background Papers

Rotherham MBC Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 -2025 
(available at www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing)

Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018)
(available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003)

Council Approval Required

No

Exempt from the Press and Public

No

Page 3

http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003


Page 3 of 11

Consideration of an application (made in accordance with s.17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003) for the Grant of a Premises Licence for the premises 
described as Unit One, Imperial Buildings, High Street, Rotherham, S60 1PA.

1. Background

1.1 The application has been made on behalf of Matki Chai Ltd for a Premises 
Licence at the premises described as a container unit in the carpark of Pitstop 
Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham, S65 1PS.  The premises 
is located within the car park of an existing hand car wash and the applicant is 
seeking a licence to permit the provision of late night refreshment from the 
container unit on Friday and Saturday night.  The location of the premises is 
shown at Appendix 1.

1.2 The premises does not currently have the benefit of a Premises Licence 
prompting the submission of the application to which this report relates.  A copy 
of application can be found at Appendix 2.  A plan of the premises (provided by 
the applicant) is attached as Appendix 3.

1.3 There is a prescribed period of 28 days following the submission of an application 
during which time interested parties / responsible authorities may submit 
representations in relation to the application.

1.4 At the end of the prescribed period, four representations had been received.  A 
redacted copy of these representations can be found at Appendix 4.

1.5 Rotherham MBC Development Control have confirmed that the premises have 
not yet obtained the relevant planning consent in relation to the proposed 
development, but the applicant has made initial enquiries with Development 
Control in order to assess the likelihood of success should an application be 
made.

  

2. Key Issues

The application

2.1 The applicant is seeking authority for the following licensable activities to take 
place at the premises:

 Provision of late night refreshment

2.2 The applicant has stated that the “activity to be authorised is to allow us to remain 
open till 2am on Friday and Saturday nights. There will be no music played or 
other noise from the premises the sole purpose is to remain open till 2am to serve 
Hot drinks and snacks”.

Page 4



Page 4 of 11

2.3 The application is for these activities to take place between the hours of 2300hrs 
and 0200hrs the following morning, on Friday at Saturday.

2.4 In addition, the applicant has asked requested the following in relation to non-
standard timings:

 “If Eid falls on a day that isn’t Fri / Sat we would like to be able to open 
till 2am on this day too. Eid festival takes place twice per year”.

2.5 It is important to note that this application only relates to activities that take place 
between the hours of 11pm and 5am.  Therefore, the absence of a licence will 
prevent the premises from operating during these hours only and not at any other 
time. 

Representations received

2.6 Four representations have been received:

 South Yorkshire Police
 Rotherham MBC Children and Young People’s Services
 Rotherham MBC Licensing (in the role as a Responsible Authority)
 Cllr Kathleen Reeder (Rotherham Borough Ward Councillor for the 

Valley Ward)

2.7 The representations are summarised below, however full details can be found 
in Appendix 4.

2.8 The representation submitted by South Yorkshire Police cited the following:

 Increase in antisocial behaviour in the area.
 Concerns regarding public nuisance.

2.9 The representation submitted by Rotherham MBC Children’s Services cited the 
following:

 Concerns regarding antisocial activity and child sexual and / or criminal 
exploitation in this area.

 The premises contributing to further exploitation.

2.10 The representation submitted by Rotherham MBC Licensing cited the following:

 Sexual and / or criminal exploitation.
 Concerns regarding crime and disorder and public nuisance.

Page 5



Page 5 of 11

2.11 The representation submitted by Councillor Kathleen Reeder cited the 
following:

 Concerns regarding antisocial behaviour
 The area being subject to a Public Space Protection Order

2.12 Those that have made representations have been invited to the hearing today 
and if attending will be given the opportunity to address the Sub-Committee in 
relation to the matters of concern.

2.13 Members of the Sub-Committee should give full consideration of the issues 
raised by interested party when determining the application.

2.14 The process to be adopted at the hearing is outlined at the end of this report.

3. Options available to the Licensing Sub-Committee

3.1 A licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act with a 
view to promoting the licensing objectives:

 the prevention of crime and disorder
 public safety
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm

3.2 In considering this matter, the Committee should take into account any 
representations or objections that have been received from responsible 
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 
premises user as the case may be. In reaching the decision, regard must also 
be had to relevant provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s 
licensing policy statement.  In relation to this application, the options available 
to the Committee are:

 To grant the licence subject to the conditions consistent with the operating 
schedule accompanying the application, which the Panel may modify to 
such extent as they consider appropriate; or

 To reject the whole or part of the application.

3.3 The statutory guidance makes it clear that Licensing authorities are best placed 
to determine what actions are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a 
case-by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or other 

Page 6



Page 6 of 11

persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the 
case may be. 

3.4 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 
what it is intended to achieve. 

3.5 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would 
be suitable to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a 
licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the 
authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would 
impose on the premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to 
restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the 
authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are 
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside 
those parameters. The licensing authority should consider wider issues such as 
other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the business (if 
appropriate). 

3.6 The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on an 
assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against 
making the determination.  Conditions may be placed on the licence (if granted) 
– further information in relation to conditions is provided later in this report. 

3.7 All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of the 
application.  The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified 
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact 
should be on the balance of probability.

3.8 It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons for 
its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate reasons 
could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.

Conditions

3.9 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or 
certificate and essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the 
premises licence or the club premises certificate will be required to take or 
refrain from taking in relation to the carrying on of licensable activities at the 
premises in question. Failure to comply with any condition attached to a licence 

Page 7



Page 7 of 11

or certificate is a criminal offence, which on conviction is punishable by an 
unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The courts have made clear 
that it is particularly important that conditions which are imprecise or difficult for 
a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

3.10 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or 
certificate: proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is 
described in more detail below. 

Proposed conditions 

3.11 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives 
should emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective 
licence or certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their 
application for a premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be 
translated into the steps recorded in the operating schedule or club operating 
schedule, which must also set out the proposed hours during which licensable 
activities will be conducted and any other hours during which the premises will 
be open to the public. 

3.12 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from 
an applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in 
accordance with the applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

3.13 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating 
schedule has been submitted with an application and there have been no 
relevant representations made by responsible authorities or any other person, 
the licence or certificate must be granted subject only to such conditions as are 
consistent with the schedule accompanying the application and any mandatory 
conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

3.14 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the 
same as that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are 
broken, this may lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review 
and it is extremely important therefore that they should be expressed on the 
licence or certificate in unequivocal and unambiguous terms. The duty imposed 
by conditions on the licence holder or club must be clear to the licence holder, 
club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 8



Page 8 of 11

Imposed conditions 

3.15 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has 
been exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied 
as a result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) 
that it is appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four 
licensing objectives. In order to promote the crime prevention licensing 
objective conditions may be included that are aimed at preventing illegal 
working in licensed premises. 

3.16 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, 
type, location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises 
concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and 
standardised conditions which ignore these individual aspects should be 
avoided. For example, conditions should not be used to implement a general 
policy in a given area such as the use of CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels 
or identity scanners where they would not be appropriate to the specific 
premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of 
illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment 
might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 
checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy 
of any document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the 
licensed premises. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities 
should be alive to the indirect costs that can arise because of conditions. These 
could be a deterrent to holding events that are valuable to the community or for 
the funding of good and important causes. Licensing authorities should 
therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which are 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

4. Consultation 

4.1 The application has been subject to the statutory consultation process involving 
a newspaper advertisement and display of public notices in the vicinity of the 
site for 28 days. 

4.2 The public consultation period ran from the 12th May 2020 to the 9th June 2020. 

4.3 Relevant ward members have been notified of the application and all statutory 
requirements in relation to notification requirements have been complied with.

Page 9



Page 9 of 11

5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision

5.1 Any decision made by the Licensing Sub-Committee does not have effect until:

 the end of the period given for appealing against the decision; or

 if the decision is appealed, until the appeal is disposed of.

5.2 An appeal may be lodged by either the applicant or a party to the hearing that 
has made a relevant representation.

5.3 Parties to the hearing must be informed of the decision within 5 working days of 
the hearing (or within 5 working days from the last day of the hearing if it takes 
place over multiple days).

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this application.  

6.2 However, additional costs may be incurred should the matter go to appeal.  In 
such an eventuality it may not be possible to recover all of the costs incurred.  
The impact of these additional costs (if any) will therefore need to be met from 
within existing revenue budgets. 

7. Legal Advice and Implications 

7.1 A Council Solicitor will be in attendance at the hearing to provide appropriate 
legal advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee in relation to specific aspects of 
the application / hearing, however the advice below is generally applicable to all 
applications.

7.2 Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005.

7.3 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other 
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations 
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the 
hearing.

7.4 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the 
Licensing Sub-Committee to attach what weight to it that they consider 

Page 10



Page 10 of 11

appropriate. Hearsay evidence is evidence of something that a witness neither 
saw nor heard, but has heard or read about.

7.5 The Secretary of State’s guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided to 
licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 
2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals 
against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit 
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. 
It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application 
of licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, 
equal treatment and proportionality.

7.6 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing 
authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. The guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to 
that extent. However, the guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or 
set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing authorities have 
properly understood this guidance, they may depart from it if they have good 
reason to do so and can provide full reasons.

7.7 In addition to the above, members are reminded that all decisions must be 
taken in accordance with the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (adopted 
3rd June 2020).

7.8 Departure from the guidance and / or Statement of Licensing Policy could give 
rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be a key 
consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any 
decision taken.

8. Risks and Mitigation

8.1 The statutory requirements in relation to the consideration of this application 
are detailed in this report.  It is essential that the Sub-Committee act in 
accordance with these statutory provisions and take account of statutory 
guidance.

8.2 Failure to do this exposes the Council to significant risk of legal challenge, the 
consequences of which could result in financial and / or reputational damage to 
the Council.

8.3 Members are therefore urged to fully consider the information in this report 
when making a decision regarding this application, and to ensure that any 
decision made is justifiable, proportionate and based on the promotion of one 
or more of the Licensing Objectives.

Page 11



Page 11 of 11

8.4 Council officers are present at the meeting today and can provide additional 
advice to members of the Sub-Committee should this be required.  In addition, 
a copy of the statutory guidance and Statement of Licensing Policy is available 
for members to review should they wish to do so. 

9. Accountable Officer(s)

Alan Pogorzelec, Licensing Manager, Community Safety and Street Scene

This report is published on the Council's website. 

Page 12

https://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=


 

A
ppendix 1 

Prem
ises location 

 

P
age 13



  

P
age 14



 

P
age 15



Application for a premises licence to be granted

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Matki Chai Ltd
(Insert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Part 1 – Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

In the carpark of Pitstop Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham, S65 
1PS 

Postal address for correspondence is listed in application below 

Post town Rotherham Postcode S65 1PS

Telephone number at premises (if any) N/A

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £ 0 

Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate 

a) an individual or individuals * please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual *

i as a limited company/limited liability 
partnership

please complete section (B)

ii as a partnership (other than limited 
liability)

please complete section (B)

iii as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

iv other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) a recognised club please complete section (B)

d) a charity please complete section (B)

APPENDIX 2Page 16



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

f) a health service body please complete section (B)

g)

ga)

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one 
box below):    

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
premises for licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname First names

Date of birth                              I am 18 years old or
over Please tick yes

Nationality

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Page 17



Surname First names

Date of birth                              I am 18 years old or
over Please tick yes

Nationality

Current postal address
if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
Matki Chai Ltd

Address
86 Herringthorpe Valley Road, Rotherham S65 3RY

Registered number (where applicable)
Company Number 12522368

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)
07746887137

E-mail address (optional)
khurrumb@hotmail.co.uk

Part 3 Operating Schedule

(
07746887137

( p )
khurrumb@hotmail.co.uk

Page 18



When do you want the premises licence to start? DD MM YYYY
1 5 0 6 2 0 2 0

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

DD MM YYYY

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)
The premises will be a 20ft x 8ft shipping container that has been converted to a serving 

kitchen/cabin. The food sold will be Tea/Coffee and hot snacks. All food will be to takeaway
only there will be no provision for customers to eat in. The premises will have one side 
personnel door and a roller shutter from where food will be served (pictures attached). The 
premises will be located on one side of private land that is currently used a car wash (Pitstop 
Car wash) The land has fence and gates all around the perimeter.

The container has not yet been delivered due to the situation with Covid-19 however pictures 
of the actual container have been supplied and the location of where it will sit on the land have 
been indicated on aerial photographs.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any
one time, please state the number expected to attend. N/a

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)        Please tick all that
apply

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Page 19



Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 20



A

Plays
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of a play take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 21



B

Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the exhibition of films take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 22



C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 23



D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)Sat

Sun

Page 24



E

Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of live music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)Sat

Sun

Page 25



F

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the playing of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)Sat

Sun

Page 26



G

Performances of
dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 27



H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(g)
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Indoors

Mon Outdoors

Both

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read
guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sun

Page 28



I

Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the provision of late night refreshment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Activity to be authorised is to allow us to remain open till 

2am on Friday and Saturday nights. There will be no music played 
or other noise from the premises the sole purpose is to remain open 
till 2am to serve Hot drinks and snacks. 

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

None
Thur

Fri 2300 0200 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 6)

If Eid falls on a day that isn’t Fri/Sat we would like to be able 
to open till 2am on this day too. Eid festival takes place twice per 
year 

Sat 2300 0200

Sun

Page 29



J

Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the supply of alcohol be for
consumption – please tick (please read
guidance note 8)

On the
premises

Off the
premises

Day Start Finish Both

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor   (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 
checklist at the end of the form):

Name
Azeem Rafiq

Date of birth     27/02/1991                         

Address
Apartment 40, Plaza Quarter, Fitzwilliam Street, Barnsley

Postcode S75 2RF
Personal licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Apartment 40, Plaza Quarter, Fitzwilliam Street, Barnsley

S75 2RF

27/02/1991 
Azeem Rafiq

Page 30



K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

N/A

L

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish

Mon 0700 2300

Tue 0700 2300

Wed 0700 2300

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)Thur 0700 2300

Fri 0700 0200

Sat 0700 0200

Sun 0800 2300

Page 31



M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)
We will do our absolute best to ensure all four of the licensing objectives are met and 

adhered to. We believe the licence will allow a great addition to the area, the area is very 
diverse in demographic and the service we offer will be of great interest to the community. We
will adhere to any guidance/advice give by official agencies and also be open to suggestion of 
improvements by any official agencies. We will operate within the rules and regulations set by 
the official agencies. We would be happy to comply with and follow any suggestions if it is felt 
that we have missed any areas in the steps below.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
The area where the premises will be located will be well lit, we will install CCTV & 

alarm systems covering the premises and land. The land the premises will be situated on 
already has lockable gates and a security perimeter fence. The premises will have a roller 
shutter and secure entry door. There will be no glass on any openings of the premises. Given 
the nature of our premises serving only Hot drinks and snack we don’t foresee any related 
disorder. However, having longer opening hours on weekends where we expect to be busier 
will allow us to ensure the concentration of customers is reduced therefore reducing risks of 
any disorder. We will liase with South Yorkshire Police to ensure we are following correct 
guidance to prevent any crime or disorder. Customers will not be able to enter the premises as 
there will be no provision for this it will only be used to serve food from for takeaway only. All 
staff will be given any training that may be required or suggested by SYP or any other official 
agencies.

c) Public safety
The necessary insurance and indemnities will be in place to ensure safety of the public. 

We will ensure safe construction and installation of premises/equipment and other related item 
to ensure safety for the public. We will ensure repair/maintenance of equipment and premises 
is upkept. Fire safety equipment will also be available at the premises. Adequate levels of staff 
will also be present. The site will also be accessible for any disabled customers. We will liase 
with Fire authority to ensure safety of premises by utilising the free business safety visits 
provided by the Fire service to ensure fire safety requirements are always met.

d) The prevention of public nuisance
There will be no music or amplified sounds played at the premises within the licensable 

times. There will be adequate parking on the land to ensure there isn’t any improper/illegal 
parking on the streets. The land is large enough to accommodate expected customers. Solely 
staff  will be present within the premises there fore any situations that may cause nuisance will 
be controlled. Multiple waste disposal bins will be provided to eliminate littering and to deal 
with increase of waste disposal. Premises and surrounding area will be regularly cleaned any 
litter/rubbish will be picked up to maintain a clean environment. The majority of cooking prep 
will be done off site, the main food preparation will be heating food. The equipment mainly 
used will be fryer, microwave and a stove all of which will have noise limited by ensuring side 
personnel door is kept shut to reduce escaping noise. These will only be used periodically and 
will not be in constant use again allowing us to limit noise. Once served the customer will be 
encouraged to leave the premises and surrounding area. Any queuing by customers will occur 
on the private land so will not affect any other businesses or public areas. We will operate a
one way IN and one way OUT system for vehicles entering onto the land to use the premises to
ensure easy, systematic and disturbance free flow of customers coming in and out land and 

Page 32



premises. Any lighting will be just to illuminate the immediate area of the premises for the 
safety of customers and care will be taken to ensure the light isn’t causing any disruption to 
neighbouring residents or business. The light will only be shone onto the private land.

e) The protection of children from harm
We will be happy to operate in any voluntary schemes designed to protect children and 

will happily comply with recommendations and requirements from official agencies. Every 
attempt will be made to ensure staff are made aware of the basic principles of child protection 
to be able to identify any potential risks to children on or around the premises.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
I have enclosed the plan of the premises.
I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.
I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable.
I understand that I must now advertise my application.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 
Kingdom (please read note 15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED. 

Page 33



Part 4 – Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Declaration

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 
of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I 
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 
note 15).

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 
work relating to a licesable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or 
her proof of  entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15)

Signature Q Bhatti

Date 11/05/2020

Capacity Director

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Quratulain Bhatti
86 Herringthorpe Valley Road

Post town Rotherham Postcode S65 3RY
Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

pp (p
Quratulain BhattiQ
86 Herringthorpe Valley Road

S65 3RY

Page 34



Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.

2. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that: 
Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 
community premises  between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening 
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such 
screening abides by age classification ratings.
Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.    
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. 
Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which 
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a 
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, on any premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar 
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a 
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the 
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser 
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for 
the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 

Page 35



(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and 
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance 
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.
Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, with no limit on audience size for:   

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local 
authority; 

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the 
health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling 
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it 
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, 
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for 
more than 28 consecutive days.                                                             

3. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors
may include a tent).

4. For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.

5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

8. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.

9. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

10. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
11. The application form must be signed.
12. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided

that they have actual authority to do so.
13. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent

must sign the application form.
14. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

15. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications 
from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident 
in the UK who:

does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or 

Page 36



is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the 
carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will 
become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not 
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application copies or scanned copies 
of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as
the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the 
right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the passport to 
copy].

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person
named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic
Area country or Switzerland.

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control,
is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time
limit on their stay in the UK.

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an 
endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or 
has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in combination with an official
document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name
issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least
one of the holder’s parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or
a previous employer.

Page 37



A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in 
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is
currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from 
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the 
Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the 
UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of 
a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a 
national or who has derivative rights or residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home
Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the
UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from 
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when produced in 
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under
regulation 17(3) or 18A (2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations
2006, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland 
but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence. 

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their 
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office 
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the 
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision, such 
as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area 
state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative 
rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:-

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport, 
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family 
member – e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth 
certificate, and
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of 
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been 
in the UK for more than 3 months:

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of 
sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Page 38



Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially 
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any 
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private 
medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a 
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:-

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the 
UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us 
checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information 
with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you have complied 
with this guidance. 

Page 39



APPENDIX 3
Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Representation from South Yorkshire Police 
From: ALEC GIBBONS <Alec.Gibbons@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>  
Sent: 04 June 2020 16:22 
To: Ladlow, Keeley <Keeley.Ladlow@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Cc: HELEN E COOPER <HelenE.Cooper@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; JOHN OMALLEY 
<John.OMalley@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; CHRISTOPHER BLAKE 
<Chris.Blake@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; MARY GLOSSOP 
<Mary.Glossop@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; IAN PROFFITT <Ian.Proffitt@southyorks.pnn.police.uk> 
Subject: RE: Premises licence application - Pit Stop Fitzwilliam Road 

Hi Keeley, 

I know you mentioned Children’s Young People Services have raised an objection, yourselves at 
RMBC will be raising an objection and we at SYP will be raising an objection. In addition to the 
concerns raised we would also like to raise concerns over the impact to the quality of life of 
residents within the Eastwood area where the Pit Stop is planned for. Eastwood is the subject of a 
PSPO with the following conditions: 

i. Behaving in such a way or using language that causes, or is likely to

cause, harassment, alarm or distress to another person.

ii. Consuming alcohol other than on licensed premises or at a

licensed event.

iii. Causing noise in a public place that is likely to have a

detrimental impact on a person’s quality of life.

iv. Businesses failing to ensure that the publicly accessible

curtilage of their premises, alongside any immediate adjacent

footway, verges or other publicly accessible space, is

maintained in a clean and tidy condition, free from litter and

general rubbish.

A) In relation to point 1. Opening a food premise that is open until 2am is likely to
attract, persons from nearby public houses to the area. An increase in anti-
social behaviour, crime and disorder is frequently seen near to licensed
premises and takeaways both acting as hotspots, allowing a food premise
open while 2 am is going to attract a large number of persons who have been
drinking and are more likely to cause asb in the area directly impacting the
quality of life for local residents.

B) Linked to point A) allowing a food establishment until 2 am is going to attract
members of the public who have been consuming alcohol and may continue
to do use, which will indirectly encourage those who have already had a drink
to continue consuming alcohol near to the food establishment, a culture as a
partnership we are trying to discourage.

 <Alec.Gibbons@southyorks.pnn.police.uk> 

y <Keeley.Ladlow@rotherham.gov.uk> 
@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; JOHN OMALLEYHELEN E COOPER  <HelenE.Cooper@

<John.OMalley@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; CHRISTOPHER BLAKE 
<Chris.Blake@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; MARY GLOSSOP 
<Mary.Glossop@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>; IAN PROFFITT <Ian.Proffitt@southyorks.pnn.police.uk>

Page 47



C) It can be assumed a food establishment in this area is going to see an 
increase in noise nuisance, linked to the aforementioned concerns around 
alcohol. Food establishments have been known to attract teenagers which 
frequently leads to increases in noise related ASB, as well as other concerns 
raised by the partnership.

Regards 
Alec Gibbons T/Insp 
Rotherham Safer Neighbourhood Services 
South Yorkshire Police 
Rotherham Police Station 
Main Street 
Rotherham 
S60 1QY 
Airwaves: 1367  
Mobile 07584617288 
External: 01709 832408 
Internal: 722408 
e-mail: alec.gibbons@southyorks.pnn.police.uk 

FFor the latest news and updates: 
Visit our website - https://www.southyorks.police.uk 
'Like' us on Facebook – https://www.facebook.com/southyorkshirepolice/ 
'Follow' us on Twitter – https://twitter.com/SYPRotherham

  

Airwaves: 1367
Mobile 07584617288
External: 01709 832408
Internal: 722408

alec.gibbons@southyorks.pnn.police.uk

Page 48



Representation from Children and Young People’s Services 

From: McCartan, Joanne <joanne.mccartan@rotherham.gov.uk>  
Sent: 23 June 2020 10:34 
To: Pogorzelec, Alan <Alan.Pogorzelec@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Cc: Underwood-Parkin, Lisa <lisa.underwood-parkin@rotherham.gov.uk>; Ladlow, Keeley 
<Keeley.Ladlow@rotherham.gov.uk>; Livingstone, Irene <Irene.Livingstone@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Shipping container - Pit Stop Car Wash, Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood 

Hi, 

In terms of Child Exploitation, Children and Families Exploitation Service would have significant 
concerns regarding this establishment obtaining a license to stay open late, particularly at the 
weekends where the proposed closing time is 2am. We have regular intelligence provided by 
members of the public or concerned professionals/family members about anti-social activity and 
child sexual and criminal exploitation in this area. 

We have worked with children and families in Rotherham regarding exploitation, including direct 
work with young people and their families and have provided parenting classes in the community to 
raise awareness and tackle the issues. Despite this, there remain a number of child sexual and 
criminal exploitation hotspots in Rotherham. Some members of the community both adults and 
children remain vulnerable to exploitation and it is a concern that an establishment like this will 
contribute to further exploitation.   

Kind regards 

Jo  
Joanne McCartan  
Service Manager for Safeguarding, LADO and Evolve 
Safeguarding Childrens Unit  
Children and Young People's Services 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 
Tel: 01709 334767 

 <joanne.mccartan@rotherham.gov.uk> 

Underwood-Parkin, Lisa <lisa.underwood-parkin@rotherham.gov.uk>; Ladlow, Keeley
<Keeley.Ladlow@rotherham.gov.uk>; Livingstone, Irene <Irene.Livingstone@rotherham.gov.uk>

Page 49



REPRESENTATION AGAINST THE APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE.

IN THE CARPARK OF PITSTOP CAR WASH, 93 FITZWILLIAM ROAD, 
EASTWOOD, ROTHERHAM, S65 1PS. 

I am the Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer employed by Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council.

On behalf of Rotherham Council I wish to make a representation in respect of an
application for a premises licence for a takeaway container to be located within the 
carpark of Pitstop car wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham, S65 1PS. 

The grounds of the representation are based on prevention of crime and disorder, 
protection of children from harm, prevention of public nuisance and public safety. 

The applicant Matki Chai Ltd submitted a premises licence application for a 20ft x 8ft 
shipping container converted to a takeaway establishment. The modified container 
has a staff entry door and a public facing roller shutter through which food is to be 
served. The premises will also offer a ‘drive thru’ service for customers wishing to 
remain within their vehicles. 

The container has been sited within a carpark currently used by Pitstop hand car 
wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood. 

The applicant has requested late night refreshment Friday and Saturday between 
23.00 and 02.00. 

The proposed opening hours of the premises are Monday to Thursday 07.00 until 
23.00, Friday and Saturday 07.00 until 02.00 and Sunday 08.00 until 23.00. 

The applicant has stated the premises will be used for the sale of refreshments and 
hot food to takeaway between the above hours, offering no provision for sitting inside 
the unit itself. 

The applicant has stated the car park the unit is situated within will remain open 
during operational hours offering the opportunity for those in vehicles to eat within 
the car park. The applicant has advised the concept of the business is to offer a 
tailored experience for the Asian community, offering takeaway food and after the 
car wash closing at 6pm a service where customers will be able to order from within 
their vehicles and park within the car park.

The applicant has not provided sufficient steps on the application to promote the four 
licensing objectives. 

The car park is situated within a residential area, the container is sited next to the 
entrance gateway of the carpark adjacent to the wall of a residential property with 
several residential properties across the road from the premises. 

Representation from  
Page 50



The exit to the car park is located on Rowan Road off Fitzwilliam Road, Rowan Road 
is a residential street with dwellings alongside the carpark and the proposed exit. 

Lighting and noise from vehicles, occupants of vehicles, and the premises will have 
an impact on the residents in the immediate locality. 

Although the unit will not have seating for customers the car park size and layout 
lends itself to being used as an area to congregate on foot and in vehicles.

Eastwood and this area of Fitzwilliam Road is an area of concern regarding Child 
Sexual Exploitation, Child Criminal Exploitation, the offering of young women to men 
in vehicles to engage in sexual activity, prostitution, anti-social behaviour and young 
children missing from home. 

Young lone children have been identified walking/playing on Fitzwilliam Road late 
into the evening/early hours of the morning putting them at significant risk of harm. 

I have participated in numerous multi-agency meetings in which Fitzwilliam Road has 
been directly linked to the sexual exploitation of children and significant safeguarding 
concerns have been raised. Further to this the exploitation of children for the 
purposes of criminality and the use and supply of illegal drugs has been raised as a 
concern. 

The representation is based on the prevention of crime and disorder, protection of 
children from harm, prevention of public nuisance and public safety elements of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and would respectfully submit that the application be refused. 

I will be able to deliver evidence at a Licensing Hearing if required.

Keeley Ladlow

Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer 

Rotherham MBC

Page 51



Representation from Cllr Kathleen Reeder 

From: Reeder, Kath-Cllr <Kath.Reeder@rotherham.gov.uk>  
Sent: 08 June 2020 15:31 
To: Pogorzelec, Alan <Alan.Pogorzelec@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Subject: objection 

I want to object to a the premises PIT STOP car wash 93 Fitzwilliam Road granting of a late night 
premises licence from 11pm to 2am this area is subject to a public space protection order these sort 
of premises do have a lot of anti-social behaviour and I don’t believe that a car wash is the right 
environment for a food premises…..kath 

Page 52


	Agenda
	3 Application (made in accordance with s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the Grant of a Premises Licence for the premises described as a container unit in the car park of Pit Stop Car Wash, 93 Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, Rotherham (documentation herewith)
	Committee Report - Matki Chai grant app 100720
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


